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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

(Uncord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

The Department of Energy respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene.NH in the amount of $11,821 for the
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 30, 2025. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funds are available in the account below as follows for FY23 and are anticipated to be available in FY24
and FY25 upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future operating budget, with
the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified.

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistence FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $4,433 $5,910 $1,478

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes home energy more affordable for households with members
who are sixty years of age or older, who are experiencing a home energy hardship, and who are not
eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the current income limits. The CAAs determine
eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able to efficiently distribute these funds to households
in need that are not eligible for that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title IIIB) awarded to the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides
funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this
program was previously approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23,2022, Item #25.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

^Respectfully Submitted,

O
Jared Chicolne

Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P.37 (version I2/I1/20I»)

Noncg. 1 hib agreemeiil and all of iis aitachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Uosemur and
Cxecutise Council for approval. An\ informuilon iliat K private, contldcmiai orproprietai> muM
beclearh identified to iheagenc) and agrsstd to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutunllv agree as follow *

GENERAL PROVISIO.NS

IDENTI^^iCA l lUN.

I.I Slate AgencN Nome

New Hampshire Oepanmem of Energs
1.2 State Agency Address
21 So. Kruil St.. Ste. 10

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Coiiiracior Name

Soiilhueslcm Communit> Services. Inc.
!.•) Contractor Address

63Conimuni(> Way. PC Box 603. Keene. Kit 03431

I.S CMitraclorPhone

Number

(603)352-7152

1.6 Account Number

02-52-52-520010-

33540000 074 S00587

52SEAS23

1.7 Completion Date

September 30.2025
1.8 Price Limitaikm

SII.82I

'  1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eileen SmiglowsKi. fuel Assistance Program AdminiMralur

1.10 State Auenc) Telephone Number
{603)271-8317

l.t 1 Cnniracior Signature

Aorudbi^ Date:
1.12 Nameand TitleorConiiaciorSignaiofy
Beth Daniels. CFO

I.J3 State A^cncy.Signature

^  ̂ Daie:/0Av/^2
1.14 Natne and Title of State Agency Signatory
Jared Chteoine. Commissioner

1.^ Approval by the N.H Depaitmem of Administration. DMsion of Perstwnel \/.4

By; Director. On:

1.16 Approval by iheAJK^Q Gen»al (form. Substance and Execution) (Ifapplk-ablif)

By: On 11/4/2022

1.17 Approval by the Covemof and Executive Council (ij a/jpHtaNci

G&C Item number G&C Meeting Date:

Pogel ors

Contractor Initials 8D
Date jO/Qt/SH

SCS2[OiNHOAS.S
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Award: 2IOINHOASS

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slaw of New
Hampshire, acting througli the agency idcntitlod in block I.I
("Slate"), engager comraclor identified in block 1,3
("Coniraclor") lo pei form. and ilic Contractor shall perform. Uie
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more part»ciilnrl\
described in the altnched LXMIBIT B which is incorporated
herein bj reference ("Sere ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATFyCOMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, nnd subject to the approval of the Governor and
txecutive Council ot the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and al I obligations of the parties hereimder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17.
unless no such approval is required, in w hich case the Asrcemeni
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as show n in block 1.13 i-Eficciive Date").
3.2 If the Coiitrdctor commences the Services prior to the
blTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the CITectivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liabihtv to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Coiuracior must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CO.NDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Noiwiihsianding any provision of this Agreeincni to the
contrary, all obligationv of the Slutc hcrcundcr. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreunder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that rcduee.s. climinares or otherv\ise niodilles the
awropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in rXHIBlT D. in whole or in
part- In no event shall the Slate be liable for any payinonis
hereuinier in excess of such available appropriated funds In the
event of a reduction or terniination of appropriated funds, the
Slate sfiall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or lenninulion.
The Slate shall not be required t«> transfer funds from ans other
accDuni or source to the Account idcmificd in block 1.6 tn ihc
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5. i The contract price, method of pay mcnt. and terms ofpay meiu
are idemified and more particularly described in bXHIBII C
vvhieli is Incorporated herein by reference.

Page

а.: Tlw payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbiirsenieni tn the Contractor for ail
expenses, ufwitaicvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation lo the Contractor fur the Services The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than tfie contract price.
5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherw ise payable to the Contractor under this .Atircemem those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by NH, KSA 80:7
tlirougii RS.A 80:7-c or any other prov ision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any piovision In this Agreement to the
conu^urv. and notwiihsinnriing unexpected circumstances. In no
event shall the total ot all pay ments authorized, or octuajlv made
hereundcr. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

б. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRAC iOR WITH LAWS
A.ND REGL LAHONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Ccmiracior shall comply with al! applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employ mcnt opportimiiy laws. In addition, ifihis Aireemeiu is
funded in any pan by monies nfthe liniied States, the Contractor
shall comply w hh all federal executive orders, rxiles. regulations
and statutes, and w iih any rules, regiik-iiions and guidelines as the
•State or the United Slates issue to implemciu these regulations,
Tlic Coniidcior shall also comply w ith all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6-3 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for cmploymeni
because of nice, color, religion, creed nge. sex. handicap, sexual
Ofieiuation. or national origin and w lit ttdte affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access lo any of the Contractors books, records and accounts for
the purpose of asccrijliiing compliance with all rules, reaulaiions
Qiid orders, and the covenants, tenns and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSON.NEL
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary lo perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Sen. ices shall be qualified to
perlorm the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherw ise authorized lo do so under all applic^lo lavvs.
7.2 l.mless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) monihx after the
Completion Date In block 1 .7. the Comracior shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fi rm or
corporation wiili wliom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Sen. ices to hire, any person who is a Stale employ ee
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or otlldal. who h materially involved in the procurement,
adminiMration nr perfnrni.ince of this Agrccnicni. Tlii>
provision shall survise termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Orilccr specilled in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be (he State's representative. In the event of anv
dispute concerning the inierpreialiott of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

H EVKNT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 An> one or more of the Ibllow log acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall ccnsiitnie an event of default hereunJer (••Event
of Default");

8.1.1 failure to peri'onn the Services saiisfaclorih or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercundcr. and or
8 1.3 failure to pcrfonn any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
tnke any one. or more, or all. of the follouing actions:
8-2.1 give the Coniraciora nriiten ncttice specify ing the Event of
Dcfaiili and requiring it to be remedied vt iihin. in the absence of
a greater or lesser specilicailon oftime, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice: and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreemcm. elTeciivc (wo (2) days alier giving the
Contractor notice of termination.

8 2 2 give the Conlmeloro uritten notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all paymenb to be made under this
Agreement and ordeting that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Coniracior during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
deiermines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor:

8.2.3 give the Contractor a v^riiten notice specity ing the Event of
Default and set utT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Coiuractor any dantages the State sulTers by reason of
any Event of Default; and or
8.2.4 give the Contnicioi avkriiien notice specify ing the I vent of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, lemiinaic the
Agreement and pursue any of iis remedies oi law or in equity. or
botli.

8.3. No failure by the State lo enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Eveni of
Default. No e.sprcss failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a woiver of the right of tJie Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any fiirrhcr or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

y. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. at lis suic
discretion, tenninuie (he Agreement for any reason, in whole or

in part, by thirty (30) days wriiien notice to the Contractor that
the Slate is evereising ii% option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 lit the event of an early lennination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than nfteen (I.S) daysatler Ihcdate
of tenninaiion. a report ('■rennination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, lo
and including the date of lemiinaiion. The fonn. subject matter,
eonient. and number of copies of the lenninaiion Kepun shall
be identical to iltoseofanv Final Repon described in the attached
FXIIIIiir R In addition, ai the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early lerminaiion. develop and
submit to the State a Transiiion Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONF1DENTIALITV7
PRESERVATIO.N.
10.1 As used in this .Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
inl'omintlon and things developed or obtained durtnu the
peifonnanee of. or acquired or developed by reason of. th is
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
tiles, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, draw ingv. analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
tlnishod or unfinished.
10.2 All data and uiiy pro[Kny which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with liinds provided for that purpose
under this Agrcemeni. shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon lennination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Contidenlialiry ofdat.i sliall be governed by N H RSA
chapter 91-A or other evisling law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent coniracior. and is neiilier an agent nur an
employee of the State Neither the Contractor nor any of Its
ortlcers. employees, agenis oi mcinbers shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bcnellis. workers" compensation or
other cmoluiuenis prov ided by ilie State lo its employees.

12. A.SSICNMENT.'DELEGaT10N/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement w ithoul the prior written notice, which
shall he provided to the Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior lo
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. Foi purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
cunsalidation. or a transaction nr scries of related transactions in
which a third pany. together with its afTiliatcs. becomes the

Page 3 of5
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direct or indireel o\iner of lifij percent (50^-a) or more of the
voting, shares w similar et}uit> imcrotv or combined soiing
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of oil or substaniialU all
of the assets ofthe Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted b\ the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent ofthe State
lite State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignineni
agreements and shall not be bound b\ an> provisions contained
in a .subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
pitrty.

IJ. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted h> law.
the Comractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
otTicers and employees, from and against any and ail claims,
liabilities and cttsis for any personal injury or propeny damages,
patent or ct^yrighi infringcmem. or other claims assettcd against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out ol (or whiLit
may be claimed to arise out oO llic acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontrdctors. including but ntji limited to the
negligence, reckless or intemional conduct. The State sliail not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Coniracior arising under
this paragraph 13. Notw ithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
cuniaincJ shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
tcnninaiiun of this .Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 I he Contractor shall, at its sole expense. «tbiain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall rcijuire any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 tutiitiiercial general liability insurance against alt claims
of hodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts of not
less than S1.000.000 per occurrence and S2.000.000 aggregate
or excess, and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
grt'o ofthe whole replacement value ofthe property
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on poticy fornts and endorsements approved for use in ilie State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Deparimeni of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate ofNcvs Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a cert irtcato(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenincatc(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration dale of each
insurance policy. Tiie cenificaie(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereofshall be attached and are inrorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 fiy signing (iiis dgrccineiii. the Cuntracior agrees, ccnifies
ottd warrants that the C ontractor is in compliance with or exenipi
rtoin, the requiremenisofN.il, KSA chapter 281-A r Ittirkerx'
('ompenxatioii

1.5 2 10 the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H, RSA chapter 28) A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subvomidcioi or assignee to secure and maintain,
paymeni of Workers" Contpcnsaiion in connection with
actix itics wliieli ilie person proposes to undertake piirsiiam to this
Agreement The Comractor shall furnish iJie Contracting Officer
idenltfied in block 1 .9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28t-A and any applicable renewiil(N) thereof, which shall be
aiijchetl and are incorporated herein by reference, the State
shall ruM be responsible tor payment of any Workers"
Compensation pa-miurns or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
perfitmidnce ofthe Services under this Agreement

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pam
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office .addressed to ihc parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. hcrvin.

17. AMEND.MENT. This .Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrumem in writing signed by iIk
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendmcm.
waiver or discharge by ihe Governor and Kxecuiive Council of
the State of New I lampshire unless no such approv.a] is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FOHU.M. 1 his Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accorJunvc with the
laws ol the State of New- Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns, Ihc wording used in this .Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to e.xpre5.s their mutual intern, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any [»nv.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire SuperiorCoun which shall have
exclusive jurisdiclton thereof.

19. CONfLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiici
between the terms of this P-.'7 form (as modified in EXHIOII
A) and or aiiachments and amendment thereof, the terms ofthe
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT .A) shall control.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The pnnics herein dn nni intend to
benefit anv iliird panics and this Agreemem shall not be
construed to confer an\ such benefit

21. HRaDIIVCS. The headings throughouithe Agreemem are
for reference purposes i>nl>. ajtd the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modily.ainplif) or aid in ilic
iiticrpretailon. construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or niodifNina
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBH A are incorpoi^led
herein bv reference.

23. SEVRRABILITV. in ilieeveniany ofihe provisions ofthis
Agrocmeni arc held bv a court of competent jurisdiction to be
conirary to any state or federal law. the remaining provkinnv of
this Agreement v\ ill remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemenl. vthich tnav be
executed in a number of coiinterpans. each ofwhich shafi be
deemed nn original, voiisiiluies the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
ugreemenisand undersiandinys w ith respect to the subject matter
hereof
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBM A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1  On or before ilie date set fortli in BliKk i ,7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall deliver to
the State an iiidependem audit of the Contractor".«entire agenc\ b> a qualified independent auditor in
giKxl standing w ilh the stnic and federal go\ cmmcni.

1.1 This fliidii shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requireinenls ol l]ie2CFR 200.
Subject K- Audit Requirements.

1.2 This audit report shall include a schedule of reseinies and e.\pcndnurcs b> eoiilracloror grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractors fiscal sear. I he Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process lo clioose a qu-ilified financial auditor at least cver> four years.

1.3 I he audit report shall include a schedule of prior >cars questioned costs along \vitli an agcne>
response to the status of the prior years questioned costs. Copies of all OMB letters written as
a result ofaudiis shall be forwarded to NHDOE, Tlie audit shall be for\\ardcd to NHDOE
wiihiii one month of the lime of receipt b\ the agency, accompanied b> an action plan lor
each nnding or questioned cost.

2  The costs charged under this Agreement .shall he determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in C'l R 200 Subparl C- Cost Principles.

3  Program and financial records pertaining to this Agreement shall be retained b> the agcncx Rir
3(lhrec) years from t!w date of submission of the final e.xpendilure report per 2-CFR 200.333 0
Retention Requirements tor Records and until all audit findings liaxe been resolved.

4 No portion of the funds paid under this Agreement may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional
Federal funds under any law of the l.'nhed States, except isauihori/ed under the law.

5  CLOSE OUT OF CONTRAd" All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be submitted
to the State within thiny (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

6 The Dcpanmcnt resenes the right to extend iliis agrcemem fur up to iwol2i additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding. v\rittcn agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and F.xccutivc Council.

7  Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAI NA1URR OF AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding any provision of this .Agreemem to the contrary, all obligations of the State,
hereunder. including without limiintion. the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of liinds. including anv
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive aclioii thai reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the'appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in F.xhibil B. Scope of
Services, in whole or in pan. In no event shall the State be liable lor anv payments hereunder in excess
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of appropriated or available funds. In the e\enl of a reduciinit. termination or modification of
ai^ropriaied or available fiindi. the State shall have the right to w ithhold pa\ ment unlit such funds
become available, if ever. The Slate shall have the right to reduce, leriuinaic or mudif) services under
this Agreement inimediatelv upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, lennii^ation or
modification. I he State shall not be recjuired to trdnsfer funds from anv other source or account inia
the Accounts) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Niiiiibcr Or anj otiier
account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

8  Amend parugraph 9.2 ofthe General Pivvisions bv deleting the sentence; Mhe form, subject matter,
content, nnd number of copies of the Tcnnination Report shall be idcniica! to those ofanv Final
Report described in F-shibit B."

9  Amend paragraph 9 ot the General Provisions bv adding the following siibparographs:

9.3 In the event ofearlv tcnnination. the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of earlv lennination.
develop .and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the .Agreement, including, but not
limited to. identifying the present and future needs ol'clienu. receiv iiig serv ices under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

9.4 The Conimcior shall fully cooperate with the State and shall prompilv provide detailed infonnaiion
to support the Transition Plan, including but not limited to. any information or data requested b\ ilic Slate
related to the icmiination ol the Agreement itiui Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing coinntunicatioii
and revi5ion,s of the I ransition Plaii to the State as rev|iiesied-

9.5 In the event that services under the Agrecmcni. including but not limited to clieriis receiving services
under tl>e Agreement are iransiiinned to having services delivered bv another cmity including contracted
providers or the State, the Comratlor shall provide a process for unimemipted delivery of services in the
transition Plan.

9 6 The Contractor shall cslablish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
irunsilion. 1 he Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
tite Slate as described above.
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NEW IIAMPSHIRF DF.PARTMF.NT OF ENERGY

EXHIBtT B

SCOPE OK SERVICES

Tlie Contractor agrees to provide Senior l.nerg> Assistance Services to qualiried low-income individuals
and agrees to perform all such scrv ices and oilier ork ncccwniv to operate the proK'U'ii in accorJaiicc
with the principles and objectives set fonh in the Fuel Assistance Piogram Procedures maiuial and the
other guidance as determined bv the Nevs Hampshire Department ol'Eiicrgt {NHiX)E).

Senior Fnergv Assistance Services (SFAS) w ill bo defined to include the follow ing categories;

1  Outreach. eligibilit> deicnnination. and certification of SEAS applicants.

2  Pavmenisdirecilv toenergv vendors:
A Reimbursement for goods and serv ices del ivered.

5  Emergencv Assistance in the form of reiinbursemeiii for goods or services.

SC-SiSfAS23



Nr.WHAMPSHIRPDFPARIVItN I Or ENbRGY

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TLRMS

In consideration of the saiisfaclor> iwfoniiance of the services as determined b\ the Slate, the State aitrccs to
pay over to the Contractor the sum of SI I.Sil.W twliich hcrcinofter is referred to as the - funds")

The following funds wilt be authoiized:

SI 1.821,00 tbrSeiiinr Energy Assistance Sen ices (SEAS)

The dales for this contract are upon (iovemorand E.\eculive Council approval through Sepicinher 30. 202.S.

Approval to obligate tlic above-awarded funds vvill be prov ided in writing b> the New Hampshire Department
of Ene^ to the Contractor. Reimburseincms will be made to the Contractor onlv after writieti documentation
of cash needed is submitted to the Slate Disbursement of these funds shall bo in accordance with procedures
established bv the State.

StS-SI-ASiJ
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

Tlic Coniractor idcntit^ed in Section 1.3 of ihe General Prov isions ajjrees to coinpK vv ith the pro\ isioiis of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-free Workplace Act of! 988 (Pub. I,. 100-690. I itie V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 ct scq,). nnd furtltcr agrees to ha\e llie Contractor's reprcscnimise. as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 »)r
thefienernl Prov isions, e.xecuie tlte Ibllouing Cenificniion:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND III MAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTME.NT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

I S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CI^NTRACTORS
US DF.PART.VIENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Tills certification is required b> the regulations implementing Sections .S!5I-5I60 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Acton988(Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70Ietscq). TlieJanuarv 31. 1989 regulations were
amended und published as Part II of the Ma\ 25. 1990 Federal Registej- (pages 2 i 681 -21691). and require
certification by grantees (and b\ inference sub-grantees and sub contractors) prior to award that tlie\ w ill
maintain a dnig-free workplace. Section 30! 7.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and hv infercjice
sub-grantees and sub-contraetc»rs) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal sear in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered b> the cenitlcation.
1 he ccnificaic set out below is a maierial representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant, false certification or violation of the cenific.ition shall be grounds for suspension ofpavniems.
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debaiment. Contractors using this form
should send it to.

Fuel Assistance Administrator. New Hampshire Department of kncrgy.
21 So. I ruit St. Sic. 10. Cimcord. NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will coiUinue to pn»v ide a drug-free workplace b\;

(a) Publishing a siaiemenl notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use ofa controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions iliai will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition:

(b) Lslablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees fwdnig abuse violation.s occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requireiiteiii that each employ cc to be engaged in the performance ofthe grant be
given a copy of the statement requireil by paragraph (a):

(d) Notify iiig the employee in the staienicnl required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employmeiil under the grunt, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement: and

srAS2t0lNtH,ANS P37 ExhibitsD.hniJI
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, confd

US DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2) noU5' '1* onployer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no l«er than five calendar days after such conviction.

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
sul^Mngr^h (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice ofsuch conviction.
Employers ofconvicted cnqtloyecs must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose gram activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal ageo^
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include (he
identification numbers} of each aHected grant;

(0 Taking <mc of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice und&
subparagraph (dX2), with respect io any employee who is so convicted;

(1) Taking t^proprime personnel action against stich an employee, up to and including
termination, consi«cnt with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabiliution program approved for such purposes by a federal, slate, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making a good fahh effort to continue to maintain a dnig-free workplace through implementation
ofparagraphs (aX (b). (cX (d). (e). and (f).

(B) The grantM may insert in the ̂ ace provided below the 3ite($) for the perfortnance of work done in
oonnecticn with the qrecific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (I ist each location)

Check G'fthere are wt^iq^aces on file that are not identified here.

^4hinf!^4ffn Umraif^lfi t ^ Infl
Contractor Name J

Sq)tember2l. 2022 to Scptcmbw 30,2025
Period covered by this Ceitification

StHi Dantdi.^0
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

/OanttJx) ̂
Contrscttx* RqMvsentative Signature Date

S£«2..INH0«S niMBOtoH
CFDA»3 0«4 Page 2 Of?
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provtskHts of Section
319 of Public Law 101-12),QovenunentwideGuidanceforNew Restrictions on Lobbying,and31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further apees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in SectlOTB 1.1! and 1.12oftheG«ietal *
Provisions, execute the following Ceitification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
SEAS

Contract Period: SeptenAer 21,2022 to Septembff 30.2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and beliefthat:

(1) No fedwal apprqjiiafed hinds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or aUempting to influence an ofTtcer or employee ofany agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member ofCongresa in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification ofany
federal crmtract, gram, loan, or coopoaiive agreement (and by ̂ecific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any fiinds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
office or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this Weral
contrart, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractw),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Porm to Repim Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, auached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this ccrtificaiion be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transactimi was
made or altered imo. Submission of this certification is a [xerequisiic for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Seaion 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
sidiject to a civil penalty ofnot leas than $10.000 and not more than S) 00,000 for each such failure.

y  ££0
Contractor Rqiresentative Stgnaiure Contractor's Representative TTtle

{hnmimH-u /o/a/faa.
Contractor Name J Dale

m ExbflMiaDthtuH
SEAS2IOINHOASS tAuwiiawwrun
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The CoiHractor identified in Section 1.3 ol the General Pro\ isions ajtrees to conipK w ith the pro\ isions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CKR Pun 76 regarding Debamiciit. Suspension.
and Other Kesponsibiliiv Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's rcprc-scntativc. as idcntiHed in
Sections I.M and M 2 of the General Prot isions. execute the follow iiigCcnification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEBARMENT, SUSPENSIG.N, A.M> OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) B\ signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primjiix panicipant is providing the
ccnification set out below. '

(2) ! he inabtlit) of a person to prov ide the cenilkaiion required below w ill not necessariiv result in denial of
participation in tins covered iransaciion Ifnccessarv. the prospective participnn! shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the ceniflcmion The ccriitlcation or explanation will be considered in connection
with the Nil DOE'S deteniiinatioii whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
pri»nar> participant to (uniish a cenitlcaiion or an e.vplanaiioii shall disqualitv such person from participation
in tliis transaction.

(3) The certification In this clause is a niaierial representation of fact upon whieli reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later delemiincd liiai llie prospective primarv
participant Know ingjv rendered an erroneous cenillcation. in addition to other remedies av ailable to the
lederal government. NH DOEmav terminate this transaction for cause or defiiuit

(4) 1 he prospective primarv participant shall prov ide immediate written notice to the Nl I IWE agency to whom
this proposal (eontruci) is submitted if at anv time the prospcctiv e primarv participant learns that it.s
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous bv reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms covered transaction, "debarred." "suspended."" "ineligible." "lower tier covered transaction."'
••participant.^ "person." "primai^^ covered transaction." "principal." • proposal."" and •■voluntarily excluded."
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definilioas and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CKR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primarv participant agrees b\ submitting this proposal (coiuraet) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not Kiiowmglv enter into anv lower tier covered tran.saction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarilv excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorised bv NH DOL.

(7) The prospective primarv participant further agrees bv submitting this proposal tlwt it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding DcNifmcnt. Suspension. Incligibilitv and Voluntarv Fxclusion - Lowerlicr
Covered I ransaclioris." provided bv NHDOF. without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction ma\ rclv upon a certification ol a prospective participant in a lower tier
cvwered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or inv oluniarilv e.xcltided from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the eenificaiion is erroneous. A panieipanl mav decide the method and
trequcncv bv which it detennines the cligibiiitv of its principals. Each participant mav. but is not required to
check the Non-procuremeiii List (of excluded parlies)

(9) Nothing conlaiued in the foregoing shall be construed to require esiablislimcm of a sssteni of records in order
to render m good faith the certification required bv tills clause. I he know ledge and'infonnatioii of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is norniallv possessed bv a prudent person in the ordiiinrv
course of business ticalings.

(10) E.xcepl for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingiv enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or \oluiitaril> excluded from participation in this iianviciion. in addition to other remedies
available to llic federal government. Nil DOE mav terminate this transaction for cause or default.

SIAS2IU1MKMXS P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DFBARMF.NT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certificaiion Regariling Debarment, Suspension, and Oilier
ResponsihUUy Mmers - Primary Covered Transavtions

(1) The prospecii\e priinar\ panicipaiu certifies to the best of its know ledge and hellef. that it and its
principals;

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, propissed for dcbarmcni. declared ineligible, or voluntaril)
excluded from cos cred transactions b\ an\ federal deparimctn or agenc\:

(bj have not within a three-yMr period preceding this proposal (contract) been consicted ofnrliada
civil judgment rendered against ihcnt for commission of fraud or for a criminal otTense in
connection with ohtnining. attempting to obtain, or performing a public (redeml. state or local)
transaction or h contrnvi under a public transaction, violation of hederat or State antitrust statutes
or commission ofcmbczzlcnicnt. theft, forgers. briber), falsification or destruction of records,
making false statemenis. or receiving stolen propcrtj;

(c) ore not presently indicted for othenvise criininalK or civ ill) charged bv a governmental cntitv
(federal, state or local) with cominission of anv of the offenses enumerated in paragrapli (1) (b)ol
this ccnificaiion; and

(d) have not w iihin a three-year period preceding this application proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or Icca!) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primarv participant is unable to certifv to aiiv of the statements in this certification.
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Re^ardinn Oehunnent, Suspension, ineligibility and
yoiuiifary Exciiishn - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participanu as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presenilv debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbarmcnt. declared ineligible, or v oluniariK
e.xcluded from participation in this transaction by iinv federal department or agency.

(b) w here the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certifv to anv of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (comracl).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees bv submitting this proposal (contract) thai it will include this
clause entitled • Certification Regarding Uebamient. Suspension. Ineligibihtv. and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions. " without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covcrcd transactions.

i)AnixLi y Ceo
Coniraclor Representative Signature Contractor's Represeniattvc 'ntlc

<5oHihu//^in romnnuniiy fo/Qlh^
Contractor Name ^ Date '
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPART.MENT OF ENEROV

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

TIic Confnicfor idctilinetl in Section I ..1 ofllie General Provisions agrees bv signadirc ol the Commetor's
representative as iJemilied in Sections I II and 1,12 of the General Pros isions! to cwciitc the fuikming
certification:

B\ signing and siibniilting this ptvposa! (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efl'orts to
compls with all applicable pros isions of the Anicricnns with DisabiHties Act of jOQO.

C-EO
CoiUiactor Representative Signature Contractor s Representative Title

Contractor Name

SMS2.oiNti(.,\ss P37Exhil>ii,vDihn.H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CF,RTIF[CAT10.N

Public Law 103'227, ParlC
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance w iili Part C of Public Lav. 103-227. ilie -Pro-Childrcn Act of I smoking ma> not b»e permitted
in anj portion of any indvwr facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
librae sen ices to children under the age of 18. if ilie sen ices are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local goveminents. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. 1 he law does not apply to children's services provided in private residence<>. facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Mcdkuid funds, and j«inionscir facilities used for inpaticnt drug or alcohol
treat menl.

Tlic above language most be included in any sub-awards that contain prov isions for children's services and thai
ail sulvgramecs shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply w itli llic prov isions of this law may res
in the impi>silion of a civil monetary penalty of up to SI .000 per day

result

Contractor Representative Signature

mm.

Contractor's Representative litic

Contractor Name Date

MA.S210I\IIOASS
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STATE

Firet 9/30/2022

liXiMPI.EOMY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

ICONTRACTED BUDGET
ADMIN. FA PROGRAM

538,220.00 5.646,370.00
SEAS ASSURANCE 16

82,200.00

E»hlbil I

TOTAL

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED
0 00

000

0 00

0 00

0 00

000

000

0 00

0 00

0 00
ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165.551.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

000

538,220.00

1.165,551 00
4,480,819.00

000

82,200.00
0.00

357,200.00
1,165,551 00
5,458,439.00

BMCA

FirsI 9/30/2022 ADMIN FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET 95,683.00 1.003.686.00 12,906.00 69,960.00 1,182,114.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 000 0 00 0.00 0 00

■  ' ' 1

0 00

000
(THIS APPROVAL TO 0BUGAT6 0.00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE
0 00

95.663 00

207,112 00

796,474 00
0,00

12.905 00

0 00

69.960 00
207,112.00

975.002.00

SNHS

First 9/30/2022
' ' ■ ■ »i«i

ADMIN FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,716,162.00 34,968.00 84,220.00 2,001,117.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED
"  1 .IMMIll IM,..

0.00 0 00 0 00 0 00

000

0 00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354.678.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE
0.00

163,777.00

354 578 00

1,363,574.00
0 00

34,968.00
0.00

84,220.00
354.578 00

1,646,539.00

SOS

First9/30/2022 ADMIN FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET 83,838.00 879,501.00 11,821.00 64,960.00 1.040,117.00 j
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 000 000 0 00
0 00

0 00
ITKIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0 00

63,835.00
181.504.00

697,997.00
0 00

11,821.00
0.00

64,960.00
161.504 00

858,613.00

CAPSC

First 9/30/2Q22 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET 64,676.00 573,593.00 7,003.00 55,110.00 690,382.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 000 0 00

1 - .w.. 1

000

0 00
ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TQ OBUGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE
0.00

64,676.00
118,373 00

4SS.220.00
0 00

7,003.00
0 00

55,110.00
118.373 00

572,009.00

TCCA

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONITULCTED BUDGET 140.269.00 1,471.538.00 15,503.00 82,950.00 1,710,260.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
0 00

0.00
THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 303,964.00 0.00 0.00 303,964.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TQ OBLIGATE
0 00

140,269.00

303 964 00

1,167,654.00
000

15,503.00
0.00

82,950.00
303.964 00

1.406.276.00

.SFAS2IOINHf)ASS
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NF.W HAMPSHIRF. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REG.ARDJ.NG THE FEDERAl. FUNDING ACCOUN'I ABIl ITV
AM) transparency ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal I unding Aecountnbiliu a,.d fraj,sparer,e> Ac. (1 FATA) requires prime auardecs of
individual IcdeniJ grants equal to or greater than S:5.000 and rmarded on or alter October 1 2010 to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated llrsi-iier siib-grants of $25,000 or more

o ' m ^ 523.000 but subsequent gram modifications result in a total award cqital to orover S.o.OOO. the award is subject to the IT ATA reponiiig requirements as of the date of the award.

Ill accordance w ith 2 CFR Part 170 (Ri-ixminn md unj Execiillw C nm[K-muiio}, hifonuutiwi)
the New Hampshire Depanmcm of Encrgv must report the folKm ing infbrniaiion for am sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements.

1) Nameofeiiiitv
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grarUs
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptiveof the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the cntitv

8) Principal place of perroimance
9) Unique Identifier of the entity (UCl P)
10) Total compensation and names ofilic top five executives if;

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal governmeiu and those
revenues are greater than $25M aiimially. and

b. Compensation information is not tilieadv av ailable through repcmiiig to the .SEC,

Prime gram recipients must submit FI'ATA-rcquired data by the end of the month plus 30 davs in wliieh
ihe award or award amendment is made.

The Comracior idcniincd in Section IJ of the General Pr.n isions agrees to eompiv with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accoumabilily and Transparencj Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 1 10-
252. and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporthig Stib-uwonl unO Exi-ai/hv Coni/iai^uiioii hifonmium). and funher
agrees toliave the Comractor's represemntivc. as idemified in Seciioii» I.II and J.I2 of the General
Prov isions. execute the following Certificaiion;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed infonnation a.s outlined above to the New
Hampshire Departmem of Fnergy and to comply w ith all applicable provisions ofthe Federal Financial
Accountability and Tmnsparency Act.

iPgniiVe ̂ &eJh r)nr,;iK , Pfn
(ContruciorRcprcsentativcSignaiure) fAuihori/ed Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Cuniractor Initials QO

Page I nf2
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor ideiuined in Section i .3 of the General Pro\ isioiis. I cerlif) thai the asponses to the
bclovs listed questions arc true and accurate

1. Ihe Unique Entilj ldemifier(i;HI) niimhcr forvcHjrcntitv i>
—muuxm M63X3——: J.

2. In >otir business or organization s preceding completed fiscal \car. did \our business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more ofvour amuiai gross revenue in U.S. fcderai contracts, subcontracts, loans
grants, siib-gnmis. and or cooperative agiecmenis: and (2) 525.000,000 or more in amuial gross revenues
Irom U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, siib-gritiiis. and. or cooperative aureeinents?

NO _YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, slop here.

If the answer lo tt2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the coinpensaiion ofihe executives in vour business
or organization through periodic repons filed under section 1.1(a) or i5(d) cf the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934(15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d))of section 6104 of the Iniemal Revenue Cinle of 1986"^

-NO _YbS

If Ihe an.swer lo #3 above b YES. slop here.

if the answer lo#J above is NO, please answer the following:

4. llie names and compensation of the five most highlv compensated ofTlcers in vour business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Ami>»int:

Amount:

Name: AniQiini:

Name: Amount:

Na'"f: Amount:

C o(nrj<.iiii liiiiul.'.

Date
I'«8c2nr:' '
SI ASCIDVeVttm



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

ri RTincAM

I. DaviJM ScffltUi, Scacun ol Suicorihc SwicofNc\\ ilamp^hiic. du hcrch) ccnily ihji M»rril\vrsTl-l«\ C'()V1.N!I.:N| l Y

SI.RVrCrs, rs.T a Vcv* | [ampsWn.* Nonpnilii I nrptiraiuMi rftiiicivJ tc irmsaii business in '"■crt lljnipsiiiri; i>n Muv (9, I%5,
I lunhcrccnilv ihul all Icoj. anddiK-umcms required b) ihu Sc>.r«;un m Suiv s..lllvc h.ivc bccti rctviM-'d and istn goinl Mandiii£
a& liir us ihis ollkv is ctinccmcd.

Iiusinv\s ID' 65514

Cenilicaic Number, 0005755656

SJ
4".

S.

IB.

o
Wll

•«b

IN II'.MIMUNY WHliRIOl .

I Ivrcin sei m> hund and eausc in be alUxed

llie Seal nf itie Stale nI'Vcw Hampshire,

ihis Mill il.iv ol" April A.D 302;.

Qgil
!)jv id M. 5i..irtl.<ii

seereuirx nlMaic



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Kevin WaKerson
(Name c-fine eieetacj Of! ce- of :i e C ■ ■■ei.c -.'1,10 r;- ■■ - -t.-- •

1. 1 am a duly elected CloiWSosrotary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inr

hereby certify that:

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/ehareheWefS dulv eaiied andheld on June 18 . 2021 , at wh,ch a quorum of the Directorsfeharehetders wl^^S^ndVot^r
VOTED: That B^th PaO|$lg. C,6Q (may ijgt more than one person)

1  cinj litliT'cU \ -'o. .

Sf 0^ Southwestern Commur>itv Services Inc. to enter into contracts or aoreemenls withtnestate 'No'v.i? .k ijc-L-jrf.LO': i ir
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote

I ! ffiat Mid vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
r5-f. amendment to which this certificate is attached This authority remains valid forthirty (30) days from (he date of this Certificate of Authority l further certify that it is understood that the State ofNew Hannpshire wfil refy on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indiMted and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are anv
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in/contracts wlth;t1ie Stale of New Hamoshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein ^ ' I m e.

Dated 10/21/2022
jlghatufe of Elected Officer
<Jame Kevin Watterson
Title Chairperson

■  IkM

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

REP^SENMI^V^^gRpS^^ * -NSURERIS). AUTHORU-ED

DATE \HWWTm\

07'0d'?022

insured, the poHcydos) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED pro7l.lons erbeendoraed

ean^^io . 1 '*""• 'h* po'lcy. certain polleioa may require an ertdoreement A statement onthis eeniflcaio does not confer rlgltta to the coriifleate holder in Heu of euch endorsementd)
nnooucEia

ClaiL Mortinson irsurar>ce

POeo>6W

NH 03431

N/Sie'*'^' rViaO Donncli CPlvr CIC —.

K.em: fiSu,,. (603)367,8491
AMHUss oo^YtneliiShiibqiuup <x'-

•HSuecmsi AsroaoiNO covekaoi

INSURER A IrVfernmf/ InSU'dTCC Co
MMCf

IHSUPED

Southwesiem Commumiy Serwses inc

63 Community Way

P0 8o' 603

le*"® NH 03A3I

iNSUftEft d • Emp(oyH& Mut Ins Co

lOUOO

11149

INSURERC :

OfSURCR D

INSURER e '

WSURERF ̂

.1^ . '-v^.ww w. i.»c f ci/oe".v». fwvL btt" i:35UtV I(J THE PNSURcO NAMED AfiOVt FOR THE POLICY PFn»nn^DtCATED NOT WITHSTAHOJNG ANY RSOUIREMENT TERM 0R CCNDtT ION 0- A VY COf/TR-C f C'R OTH£P DOCLA^cN7 V1TH BF^PFrT TO n •»«CE^U IFICATE MAY EE 1SSUC0 OR MAY PERTAIN. THE WSVRANCC AFFOROED Bv r H£%jQE
-ntrnf COND'TIQf^S OF SUCH POLICIES UMlTS SHOWN MAY HAV5 BEEN REDljCrO RV RAjH rt AIM'S
bTR rfPf Of WSURAMCE PFmiT rouCTHywc*

■XOLKijl*
""I

wMievar-i
COMMCRCtM. eCNEIUI. UABHirv

1 CIA.MS OCC<>P

iflj

GS»rL accac^tb t > WIT AP<HigsreR
P«.lC» I I ^(?T I I iCt
OTr-FR

OUTOMOOU UAeiUTT

«Fi' luio

X

CViNEO
iurcs OfS.'
■.IREO
AUTCfc OW.v

Mramuiuu

ExceuuAa

«CnSCi<ja3
Auro%
•JOFiCAHEO
AUTOS oriLV

X iCCliK

CLAiSTS-VACt

DSD Fx BferjIlOli t 'POW
VfORKERS COmNSATION
AND CMviovEiw Luas nv
ANV PaOFBiETCfBAeTfJER^XECOTiVf
CT'FIC£B,V£MB£P SACkUffC
ItUAMIwv M NH)
If Its dASCTM u4Rr
OeSCR'P'O^ 0#* 0R€RA1 iChS

S

PROfeSSIONAL LIABILITY

".'-"™

PHPtO«3!*d3

PMf>K3«3t75a

PMU8lf«J!jF9

C6'30 202^

iKHWOTfTYYI I uuits

._Ly"C--;cu«PtMCE

^fMiTTS 'T*ora.'*wca)

Oe'3C/2022

oe.;o<2022

3ia280uvda

PHPK?a31783

0-101.J032

0ftJCM22

C5'.'«1.7ft73

C&30I2U23

M6r« b A'' I A/-, VIA M'MAl

^ERSO^M. e; AiT-v iKjUh>

CEN'RA^ Ai~CR£»LAT£

FfiOCwLT& CC^CWACC

"raasirJFo.ciA^a uwir-

SCCTLT iTi.'UPt (PBfp«3CA

Ci&^^20^3

W flV2023

C&30'2a23

oeswnoN w ommtwn# aocaiwns. vihw ps i«coao i»t. w«x>a.i a.nun. km4u. b. tmcM » >mm whu .^^ai
3a State NH
All officers inciuOM lor coverage

ROOilTil<jl;pr|F«- KuiW.'i
TPoBrBTTTOBvSi

LADt< •>:-;.j«r>£vcE

"iCPtGAT?

vt ssft r2S S7A-,^T. ^ __\
iA^A'ZvVtMt

e • c.sE.'.se T-iSMto-es

S i. fllSE.'SE PJJCVUOIT

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

j t.COOOOO
IMOOO

SOOO

< OOOOOO

2,000 000

2 000 000

1 000.000

2,000 000

2000 000

soo,coo

soo.soo

3CC coo

at ocoooD

52 0COOOQ

CERHFTCATE HOLDER

NH Departrrent of Energy
21 South Fruit Street, steio

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRAtlOM DAIE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE IWITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

Concord

1

Nil 033OI

•UTHOWZEOREPRESENTATIWE

- T-? "yj^f , /r- ^ _
ACOR02S {2018103) The ACORO name and loge are reglatersd marha ol ACORO
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

nfiiiKvni'NAi. \.s.'aK.nriii\

To the Board of Directors of ctRTinEiJ puulic Aa^ouNrAvrs
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. wolfeboro • nok-iii conveav
Keene, New Hampshire • <x)Nt;i)Ki)

STIJA'niAW

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of May 31, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestem Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2021. and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in tfie United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestem Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2020 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements In our report dated October 5, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative informatton presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2020, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. TTie accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in ttie United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 22, 2021, on our consideration of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 22,2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. {NC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivat>le, net
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivabls

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture arxJ fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciabon

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CUf^ENT LIA8IUTIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

Current portion of long term debt

Total current liat)ilitles

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Economic Ir^ury Disaster Loan
Paycheck Protection Program loan

Total noncurrent HatHlilies

Total liabiiities

NET ASSETS

WKhout donor restricllons

Wibi donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2021

1,722.941
1.781.636

62.628
2.357

3.S69.562

28.937,986
565,380
934.441

30.437,807

14.621.952

138.001
55.138

1,471,741
105.790

384

1.771,054

240,586
170.074
244,003
148,854
729,955
142,174

1,675,646

11.300,411
150,000

11.450.411

13.126.057

7,815,065
215,349

8.030.414

2020

3  1.400,153
1.201,132

67,168
2,357

19,243.210
541.236
271.753

20,056,199

8.5S7.S76

11-498.623

198.492
59,067

809,897
69,767

384

1,137.607

$ 21.156.471 $ 15.297.040

160,672

87,023
228.394
149,154
290,437
125,324

1.041,004

8,905,657

439.070

9,344.927

10.385.931

4,766,637
144.472

4,911.109

$ 21,156,471 t 15.297.040

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWFSTgRN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATgP COMPAMIES

CONS(X.IOATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govemmeni conlracts

Program sendee fees
Rental income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscelaneous

In-kind conlrlbuttone

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition
Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic dev^pment services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
filartagement and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SM.E OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LMMITEO PARTNERSHIPS

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

S 14.431.497
2,708,902
1,657.741

465,614
21.703
1,402

518,501
239,096
65,414

20,129,870

65.147

5,559,497

2.629.099
5,516,502
2,913,953
621.784
750.430

17,991.265

1.948.672

19,939,937

255,080

(60.897)

194.183

4.766,637

2.854jZ45

136.024

136.024

(65,147)

70.877

70.877

70,877

144,472

2021

Total

S 14,451,497
2,706.902
1,657.741

801.638
21.703
1,402

518,501
239,096
65,414

20,265,894

20-265.894

5,559,497
2,629,099
5,516.502
2,913,953
621,784
7a).430

17,991,265

1.948.672

19.939.937

325,957

(60,897)

2^,060

4,911,109

2,654,245

2020

Total

t 10.619,721
2,605,816
1.165,032

1.508
593,610
26,546
9.224

79,338
148,113
187.553

15,416,461

15.416,461

5,153,989
2,687,612
2,060,655
2.433,660
737,663
775,342

13,648.921

1.761,642

15,610,563

(194,102)

(140)

1236)

(194.478)

5.10S.5B7

y 7.815,065 $ 216,349 % 8.030.414 1 4,911,109

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOfi THF VFAR FNOFn MAY X1 MJ1

EdueeUon

Home Energy end Hccneleei

Proorexwe NullWoo Prparaine

PeyroB i  486.387 S 1,516,514 S  491,084
PsyrolltBiM 25,674 106,566 37,005

EmMoyee tareAl* 171,270 381,988 144,229

Relirament 32,604 85,778 24,671

Adventsrifl . 3.100 388

Baric chaipes 10 - 1,130
Osnpuier cost 225 26.110 12,051

Ccnirectual 1.007.401 12304 42,SM

OepredaBon . 26.438 117,967
Dueeffegtslratlan • 2,290 -

OupocaDng 60 8,160 -

Inscnrwe 5,530 15.035 33363

Inierosi - 5,955 5.983

Meeting and canlereniia - -

Miscellaneous expense 2,663 1,242
UsceBsneous taxes -

• •

Eoupment purchases 366 3.330 ■

Othce expense 10.064 17.479 80,872
Postage 300 366 126

Pidessiansl lees 1.050 3,300

SlaB devdopcneM and Iracrring 3.406 1,327 165

SubserlKlons - - -

Telephane 2.429 3.106 20.692

Truel 6.104 12.328 7,212

VeMOa 6.147 4,170 1,748
PeM . 24.659 .

Space costs • 122.478 3M.003
Oreet cleni asestanca 3,786,640 179,702 4,126,109
kvuio expenses "

85.414
•

TOTAL FtMCnONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL AUOCATION 6.560.497 1629,099 8516.502

Alocellon 9) mansfienwn end general expenses 602.161 284 763 597,604

TOTAL FUNtrrtONAL EXPENSES S 6.161.656 8 2 913 867 5 6 114006

Hsudng
atvte—

leacKMnk:

DfvMpRwnt Other ToHl
Proarem

Mennement
end

0«hw»l

2021

ISM

8  7a.103 8  350,843 5  439,138 5 4,011,067 5  752,116 8 4,763,183
43514 30.248 33024 276,033 126.497 396,530
263,870 55.553 180.793 1,197,703 46,508 1,244,211
51,306 20,760 14.238 . 220,367 68,966 296,322
1.295 1,696 . 8,419 133 6,852
4,109 . 11 5,260 8,766 14,026
7,765 18,171 _ 64,322 163,132 247.454

61,431 880 48.737 1.174,007 5S516 1.233,525
603036 . 7520 755,963 153.192 909,155

320 543 . 3153 8.619 11.772
. . . 6.229 4568 12.817

57,881 15,298 6.890 134,126 43490 177,618
48.121 . I.OO 61,749 113,918 175,667

840 154 133 1,127 1,637 2,784

82.239 9.546 1.359 07.249 2,675 09,924

101.224 . . 101.224 300 101,624
6.521 . 10.237 2,608 13.045
11,834 2,668 749 113566 49.579 162.165

37 348 1,179 31.990 33.178
38,627 - - 42,977 81,034 124,011
2,488 614 i.m 9,185 17.341 26.526

98 . . 98 2.787 2.665
18,872 2J99 1.117 48,515 47,535 96.060

9.515 16.336 51,497 5,675 57.172

41,329 35.941 9.682 99,187 3,912 103.009
. 21.112 45,771 - 43771

718.703 16,731 114 1,242,119 139,968 1,382,087
12,971 24.399 3^2 6,135,512 - 8,1»,S12
. . . 65 414 • 6&414

3913953 621.784 750,430 17.991,265 1.849,672 19,930,937

315,618 67,347 81 281 1946.672 (1.9488721 _

S 3 220 669 8  689131 5  831.711 8 19.938.937 5 8 10,030,037

Sm Notes to ComoMated Ftnanelel aiJtemei'iU

$
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVtcgs tNC AND HFi aypp ̂PMPflNI^?

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjuslmenls to reconcile change In net assets to
nal cash from operating aclivities;
Oepreciation
Loss on disposal of property
Loss on investment in limit^ partnerships
Forgiveness of debt

Decrease (Increase) In assets:
Accounts receivM^le

Prepaid expenses
Interest receivable
Due from related parties
Security deposits

(Decrease) Increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances
Interest payable

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVfTIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor^ term debl
Repayment of long term debt
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Proceeds from Paycheck Protectioo Program

NET CASH (USED IN] PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED
FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

2021

S  265,060

(432,400)

(432.400>

65,000
(272,082)
150,000

(37.062)

213.481

2,210,050

771,151

2020

$  (194,478)

909.155 663,252
- 140

60,697 236
(518,501) (79,338)

(580,504) 42,337
31,348 (5.446)

- 45,547
3,929 35

(2.242) (6.771)

22,045 (230,941)
36,929 (32,597)
15,609 (5.506)
(300) 10,414

439,518 109,443
- (49.547)

682,943 266.730

(136.174)

(136,174)

36.679

(127,826)

439.070

347.923

478,529

1,731,521

$ 3.194,682 $ 2.210.050

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RFLATgP COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q21 AND 2020

mi 2920

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during tfre year for interest i 175,005 $ 165,929

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long term debt $ 787,599 $

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated IPs:
Prepaid expenses S 36,607 $
Land and bintdir^s 3,362,003
Furniture and fixtures 624.491
Security deposits 33,781 .

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs $ 4,077.062

Transfer of BabllHIes from newly consolidated LPs:
Accounts payable $ 57.865
Accrued expenses 46,122
Due to related parties

1,890,296

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs $ 1.984.265 * ■

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs S 2,653,946 s «

Partners' capital previously recorded as Investment in related parties 297

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs $ 2.654.245 s



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERViCES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANiFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, arxi low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of

New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing, and
homelessness prevention. Services are provided through Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS Management
Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation, SCS Housing
Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described below. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of Southwestern

Community Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic consotidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene Highland)
Warvwck Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Warwick)

9



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANiES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP),
which require the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Oiganization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulattons imposed
by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those resbictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of
time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2021 and 2020, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements Include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read In conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2020 from
which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized
as revenue.

10



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and iiabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of May 31:

2021 2020

Cash, operations $ 1,722.941 $ 1,400,153
Cash escrow and reserve funds 1.471.741 809.897

Total cash and restricted cash S 3.194.682 $ 2.210.050

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2021
and 2020. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.
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SERVICgS. INC. AND RELATED COMPAMIFR

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(contlnuedl

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization Is operated In a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to
pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply
with a change. For the years ended May 31. 2021 and 2020, approximately 71 %
and 69%. respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
government agencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the govemment.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses In such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5 -10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets arid impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020
totaled $909,155 and $663,252, respectively.

Adyertislno

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation are
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations, As such, they are exempt from
Income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
carryforwards available for the May 31, 2021 and 2020 tax returns totaling
$1,230,191 and $1,135,222, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, If not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $542
and $555 at May 31,2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be
offset against future taxable income and, if not used, wili begin to expire in 2022.
SCS Housing Development. Inc. has federal net operating toss carryforwards
totaling $59,861 and $35,574 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable Income and, if not used, will begin
to expire in 2035.

The tax effeds of the carryfonwards as related to deferred tax assets Is as
follows as of May 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $271,025 $246,404
Valuation allowance (271.025) (246.404)

Deferred tax asset $ - 2 :

Drewsville, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side. Swanzey, Snow Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal Income taxes are
not payable by. or provided for these entities. Earnings and tosses are included in
the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740. "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions In financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income tax returns for all
open years and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

13



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. tNC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Icontlnuedl

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value w/hich focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework In generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10. the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions In
fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements, The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for Identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted mari<et
prices in active markets, which are either directly or irKiirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobsen/able inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to frie pricing of
the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Revenue Recognition
Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor Imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, If a
restriction is fulfilled In the same period in which the contribution Is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue Recoanltion (continued)

Program Sen/ice Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are
performed.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents t)e(X)me due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term
of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the

Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost
incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Performar>ce Obiioations and Contract Assets and Liabilities

The performance obligations related to the lease contracts and program services
are satisfied at a point in time. Revenue from performance obligations satisfied
at a point In time consist of monthly rental payments and fees for program
services. There are no contract assets or liabilities for the years ended May 31,
2021 and 2020.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
most existing revenue recognition guidance In U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective June 1, 2020, the first day of the
Organization's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result In a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue
streams; as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue
recognition policy above.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providlr^g the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are Incurred, such as management and
genera] and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses (continued)

The costs of providing certain program and supporting sen/ices have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
sen/ices. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2019 through May
31,2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and Is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2021 and 2020, the interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31,2021 and 2020,

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31,2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96 Main
Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

5.25% note payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for principal and Interest of $988
through March 2021. The note was paid In full
during the year ended May 31, 2021. The note was
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Ashuelot).
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$  127,000 $ 136.370
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

2021 2020

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project Is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA. 17 Pearl). 242,708 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43 Central). 376,066 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balioon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31. 2019, and
is now due December 2026. Under the amendment,

Interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and Interest are $1,957 The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Milestones). 112,702 130,230

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service In
monthiy installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank. Keene
Office). 2,134,970 2,175,749

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment Is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on contract.
The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG. Keene Office). 460,000 460,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIgS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q21 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT fcontlnuedl

2021 2020

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and Interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted In an

interest rate of 4.67% at May 31, 2021 and 2020.
The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (TD Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 376,617 389,578

5.19% note payable to a bank In monthly
Installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note was paid in full during
the year ended May 31. 2021. The note was
secured by real estate of the Organization (TD
Bank. 45 Central Street). - 88,433

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025, The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 75,000 100,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD, 112
Charlestown Road). 45,000 60,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT fcontinued^

2021 2020
Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments In the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance Is due.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment Is due and 5% of the
balance Is forgiven each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG,
Second Chance). 311,808 328,219

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SCS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. SCS will receive the funds
as progress is made. The rote is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fuiiy forgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years (CDBG, Keene
Shelter). 326,899 9,500

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econollne Van). 7,815 12,637

6.54% note payable to a finance company In
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$442 through November 2023. The note was paid
in full during the year ended May 31. 2021. The
note was secured by a vehicle (Ally, GMC Acadia). - 15,903

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $820
through May 2031. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central Street). 84,395

19



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT fcontlnued^

2021 2020

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SOS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SOS will receive
$472,000 from ODBC. SOS will receive the funds
as progress is made. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fully forgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years (CDBG. Elm Street
Shelter). 189,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene. 139 Roxbury Street). 77,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire, with an original balance of
$240,000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene. 139 Roxbury Street). 204,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures in June 2029. The note is

secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued!

2021 2020

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payabie to a county in New Hampshire. Paimients
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capitai improvements.
Beginning In 2016,10% of the note is forgiven each
year based on the roiling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years in January 2026.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDFA). 139,860 162,880

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund energy
efficient improvements through the Authority's
Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and Interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 287,710 289,996

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payabie to
New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
2043, payabie in monthly installments of $1,698,
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 353,561 365,474
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

2021 2020

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable In monthly installments of $2,002
Including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 436,974 441,872

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest mortgage
note payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF),
due June 2034, principal and interest payable at
the sole discretion of the lender from the excess

cash of the borrower determined by formula,
secured by the Partnership's land and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictions for
the 30 yearterm of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note(NHHFA), 43,450 46,978

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 79,609 85,028

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at a rate of 11.67%

for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home Loan Bank). 150,000 150,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT ̂continued)

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA).

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, New Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene).

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester, New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs

Unamortized deferred Rnancing costs

Less current portion due within one year

2021 2020

434,765

915,000

500.000

11,460,204 9.049,462

f17.6191 f18.281)

11,442,585 9,031,181
142.174 125.324

$11,300,411 $8.905 857

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2021 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  142,174
142,488
146,073

151,449

157,310
10.720.710

$11 460 204
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2025. Monthly lease payments range from $900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $148,143
and $140,758, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2021 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

Amount

$  69,243
1,050

720

120

Total S  71133

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $144,916
and $141,970, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing, Inc.
and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partnerships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $11,927,000 and $13,988,000 at
May 31,2021 and 2020, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348,000 and
$35,896,000 at May 31. 2021 and 2020, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds w/ithin a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, If
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31,
2021 and 2020.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2021 and 2020, SOS Housing, Inc. managed
nine and eleven limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing, inc. totaled $228,239 and $295,814, for the years ended May 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Additionally. SCS Housing, inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entrties totaled $55,138 and $59,067 at May 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2021 2020

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9,509) $  (9,505)
Marlborough Homes, LP (43) (27)
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,524) (12,514)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (2.247) (2.071)
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP - (28)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 180,727 222,842

Westmill Senior Housing, LP 49 64

Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP - (269)
Alstead Senior Housing Associates. LP (18.452) (18.441)

S  138.001 $  180.051
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT fcontinuecD

SOS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of CItyside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP, a C.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner of
Westmill Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020.

SOS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01 % partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, LP were acquired by
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending May 31, 2021
(see Note 13), and therefore the limited partnerships are included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2021.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2021 and 2020, consists of the following:

2021 2020

Total assets S 53.169

Total liabilities 15,200 16,530

Capital/Member's equity 37.969 40.102

$ 56.632

Income $ 3,267 $ 3,408

Expenses 4.719 4.707

Net loss S f1.452t
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $296,322 and $278,209 for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes;

2021 2020

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPS/Warm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

$ 16,646

101,736
90,000
6.967

$ 4,814

91,725

40,000

7.933

NOTE 11 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcellc
GAPS funds. There was $12,790 and $14,888 designated by the board at May
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant. HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $79,431 and $79,338 for the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Organization recognized foiplveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31, 2021. See
additional detail at Note 15.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIt=S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 13 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

During the year ended May 31, 2021, Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
acquired a partnership Interest in two low-Income housing limited partnerships:
Keene Highland and Warwick. The amount paid for the partnership Interest In
Keene Highland and Warwick was $1 each, and at the time of acquisition.
Southwestem Community Services, Inc. became the general partner.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisition:

Keene

Highland Wanvick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash $ 156.907 $ 68,061
Security deposits 21,321 12,460
Cash reserves 391,456 154,727
Property, net 2,769,245 1,237,249
Other assets 25.946 10.861

Total assets 3.364.875 1.483.358

Notes payable 1,372,220 518,078
Other liabilities 86.048 18.939

Total liabilities 1.457.268 537.017

Partners' capital 1,907,607 946,341

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an Investment in related parties 269 28

Partners' capital transferred S 1.907.876 S 946.369
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31, 2021 and 2020:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Cash escrow and reserve ftjnds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

$

2021

1,722,941
1,781,636

55,138

2,357

1.471.741

5.033.813

(55,138)
(2.357)

f1.471.741)

2020

1,400,153
1,201,132

59,067

2,357

809.897

3.472.606

(59,067)
(2,357)

(609.697)

(871.321)

$  3.504.577

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,559,000 and $1,215,000 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 15 PAYCHECK PROTECTtON PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not meet the loan criteria, the unfo^iven portion of the PPP loan Is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1 %, with a deferral of payments for the
first ten months. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 has been recognized on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities for the year ended May 31,2021.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 16 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) from the Small Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDL Is payable over 30 yeare at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for one year from the date of the note. Installments. Including
principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin in June 2021. The balance of
principal and interest will be payable in May 2050. The loan Is secured by the
Small Business Administration.

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31,2021 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  3,201
3,585

3.685

3,788
3,893

131.848

t  150.000

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and. In turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19 lead to changes in consumer
behavior. COVtD-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to medium term.

30



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATFn COMPAMiES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
Including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October
22, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE Ct EXPENDITURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR rue YEAR PMOED MAY 31. Mil

FEDERAL DRANTOR/

PASS-THROOOH GRANTOWPHDGWAIil TtTU

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-TMROUQH

GRANTOR-S NUMBER

FEDERAL

SpACial SuppWmerlal Mulrtlion Program lor
Woman. Inlanls. and Chddrtn (WICl

Childand Adon Care Food Program
10.557

1D.5SS

SlasolNH Departmanl of Hesllh £ Human Servic**
Siau of NH, DapaHmeni of Education

Ol0400'52eo0000-I02-5CI07M

Unknown

t  US.SdO
165.370

Pood DUtrtbuDon Chjstof

Commodrty Supplements! Pood Pfog^em

Commodity SupplemcnUI Food Pfogrsm {Pood Coinmeddki9)
10 565

10 565

Sistt oINH, OepaHmenl of Healin £ Human Services
Commumiy AiMn Program OeHmap-Meriimaek Coumiat

01<Kl90-S2600000-ta3-S00734

Unknown

t 2.400

202600 205200

Toai U S. 09p9rtmef>t of AgricuRum 698 425

U.S. Deoartmenl of Houetno and Ufttar» DaeeloiiitiaiH

EmerBency Souiions Grant Program
COVID>19 Emetgtncy SoWions Gram Program

14231
14 231

Stale of NH. OHHS. Bureau of Homeltsi £ Housing
Slate of NH. OHHS. Bureeu of Homeless £ Housing

0S-99-95-9S63tD-71769000MCI2-5O73t
05-95-42-423010-79270000

5 142.269
BBinO 5 226 369

Supportrve Houing Program
Shenar Plua Care

Contnuirmof Care Program

14335

14 238

14 267

Slate of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Homeless S Housmg
Stale of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Homeleti £ Housing
State oINH. OHHS. Bureau of Homeless SHousmg

05-95-95-955310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-95-955310-7 t7600000-102-SQ731

OS-9S-95-9SS310-717600000-t02-5a731

116,679

309.035
371.VB

Total U S Dtpanmani ol Houcng and Urtiar DevelepmenI S 1.025 611

WtOACkister

WlOA Adu9 Program
WlOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

17 258

17279

Southern NH Saruices
Southern NH Sennces

Unknown

Unknown

5 35.453
112S.S s 46 706

Total U S Ocpartmant ol Labor/WlOA Ctuaier s 46708

u.a. Daoartment ol Traneoortation Federal Tranall Admlniatration IFTAI

Formula Grants tor Rural Areas 20 509 Stele el NH. Department of Transponatien 04-96-96-964010-2916 5 461.462

Trans# Services Programs Cluater
Enhaneed Uobiily ol Seniois and Indivrduals with Oiablities 20 513 State Of NH, OrVsntment of TranspOftahon (H-96-9B-964010-2916 50 517

TetalUS Department afTransportatioiiFederalTTanMAdmniistiaUontinrA) t 511994

U.S. DeBirlmenl el Treasurv

Coronavirus RefcefFund
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Coronavnis Relief Fund

Coronavinie Rebel Fund

21 019

21019

31 019

21 019

State of NK DHHS. Division of Economic £ Housing
StMirily
New Hampshire Housing
New Hampshire Housing

Monadnock Oevelopmantal Servtcat pic

SS-2021-BHS-03 HOUSI-04

SHellar Oeeempresaon

Shelter tTecompressKT

Long Term Care Staoilizalion Program

5 2,210,738
127.814

51,625
SBOBQ s 2446227

See Notes to Schedule of Eapendltufe* of Federal Aviarde
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SCHEDULE OF EXFENDtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL ORANTOW

PASS-THROUGH QRAHTQIWftQBHAM TITLE

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR-B NUMBER

FEDERAL

Emeigency Renlsl Assrstanoe Program 21.023 New Hampetiire Housing s 1 184S28

ToMIUS OepartmeiMofTrusuiy 8 .1 Si« I.IS

U.S. Small Bualrtets Admlnistnllen

Ooanar AuiMartee Loan1 sg.ooa Oireei Award EIDL«127270m0S $ iMinnn

Total U S Smal Business AdminlslrsMn » 150.000

Weathenzation Assisiance lor Lowancome PersoAt 81.(W2 SOta of NH, OHke of Energy A Planning 01-02-024019-7706-074-500587 $ 257.105

Tots'US DapaflmeM el Energy i 257 1t>S

U.5. Oaoartment ol HeaHh & Humsti Servkas

Aging Cluster
Speoal Progranrvt tor the Agmg, Title III. Pan B.

Granis for Supportiva Servcas and Senior Cerners

Special Programs lor the Aging, Title 111. Part 6,
Granis lor Suwnrtive Servcas ano Samoa Centers

93 044

S3 044

Stale oINH OWce ol Energy A Plariieng

BlaieolNH OHHS. euraau olEMedy A AduH Services

fl1-02-024010-7706-074-500587

05-95-M-481010-7972

S 4.967

37 929 S 42796

TANF Chiner

Temporary Asaislanct tor Needy Families S35Se Southern NH Sennoes Unknown 138 T7S

Low Income Home Energy Aitnlanoe (Fuol Auittanca)
Lowlncone Home Energy AisdtancaiBVirP)

COWD-19 Low Income Home Ertargy Assistance

93ses

S3.SM

93.568

SialB of NH Office of Energy A Planning
State of NH. OtAceolEnergyAPIanning
StateafNH. OHHS AdmnistraliorilorCfilldienA
Familes, OfBeaofCommiinliy Services

01-02-<B-0240lt>-770SODOO-S00587

O1-O2-02-t)24Ota-77OSOOOO-5O05a7

Grant 42001NHESC3

4.163.409

158.764

40 7411 4.162 914

Community Services Bkek Grant

COV1D-19Catnmun*y Services Blodt Grant

93569

83.569

Stale of NH. DHHS, Dm of Family Assistanca

Stata of NK DHHS Dnnsen of Econonac A Housing
Stabfily

500731

$00731

387,841

234.886 802 777

Communcy Semces Btoek Grant - OscretionaiY 93.570 Slate of NH. DHHS. Dr. of Famly Assistance 22.6S2

SeaNoltt to Sc)<«<hil* of EjcpcndHum el Federal Awania
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EHOEO MAY S1.20«

FEDERAL ORANTOfV
PASS.THROUGH <MARTQIM>ROGRAM TITLE

U.8. D»a«rtm«n» el HmIWi A Hunun Stntt— leonUnuMll

H«M Slirt ClusMr

Head Stan

COVID-19 Head Start

Total U S. Dapanmani of Htalth S Hvman Sarvicas

Emergcney Food and Snallw National Board Pragram

Total US D^artment of Hemaland Sacurty

TOTAL

ASSISTANCE

USTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUOH

93.600 Direct Funding
S1600 Diraot Funding

97.034 StateefNH.OHHS.OfficaofHuinanSaniieei

6ftAMTt»-S NUMBER

01CH011494

OIHEOIOSM

FEDERAL

EXPENPmjRE

3.401,431

131.202

tWutean

2.832.633

7.702.500

11006

11.008

146S43W

S«a Notai to Sctiadula of EipandHurta otFadaral Awards
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SOUTHWESTERfg COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

note 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awarcis (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31,2021. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestem Community Services. Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organizatton.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTES SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc. had no subreclpients for the year ended
May 31.2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting (intemal
control) to detennine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there Is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of (he internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompllance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompllance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Audifing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

October 22,2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described In the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified In the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of Its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Malor Federal Program

In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied. In all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compiiance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
detennine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compiiance for each major federal program and to test and report on
Internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency In Internal control over aimpllance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompllance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and con-ected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in Internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a material weakness in Internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies In Internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other
purpose.

October 22,2021
Woifeboro. New Hampshire
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SOUTHWFSTFRM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies In Intemal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, Community Services Block Grant,
93.569, and Head Start, 93.600; and U.S. Department of Treasury; Coronavirus Relief
Fund, 21.019, and Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023;

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVtCES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31,2020.
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Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Board of Directors - 2022 Composition

Cheshire County Sullivan County

Constituent

Sector

Private

Sector

Public

Sector

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Mary Lou Huffllng
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alsiead Friendly Meals

Heather Cameron

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organitation

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

David Edklns, V!cc*Choir
Town of Walpolc

Dominic Perkins, Secretory
Savings Bank of Walpolc

Kerry Bclknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Andy Bohannon
Parks. Recreation and Facilities
Director

City of Keene

Liz Emerson

Planning and Zoning
Administrator

Town of Charlescown



SCS SEAS

Key Personnel 2022-2023

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Beth Daniels Executive Director $100,000 0% 0

Terra Rogers Director of Energy &
Employment Proerams

$57,200 0% 0

Sheri Saraceni Assistant Director of Energy
Services

$41,600 0% 0



Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Executive Officer 07/2021 - Present
• Oversight of agency
• Working closely with the Board of Directors
•  Supervision of Senior Staff
• Agency compliance

Chief Operating Officer 03/2016 - 07/2021
• Oversight for all general operations of the agency
•  Supervision of Program Directors
• Agency-wide initiatives
• Grant compliance

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 02/2015
• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor

Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and
Assurance 16 as well as the employment programs Workplace Success, Work
Experience Program, and WIA.

Career Navigator, Families at Work 04/2006 - 10/2008

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist 11/2004 - 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
• Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003

Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000-09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services,

Immigration & Naturalization Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training

Leadership Monadnock 2016

Grant Writing Workshop 05/2012
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention 2012
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training 2010-2011
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers 11/2007
Careerlrack

How to Supervise People 11/2007
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training 09/2005
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certifled Workforce Development Specialist 06/2005
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bioodborne Pathogens 01/2003
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services 05/2002

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

Projects/Appointments

Current Board Member, Monadnock Collaborate

Current Member. Executive Committee, Leadership Council for Healthy Monadnock

Current Member, Sullivan Count Public Health Advisory Council

Created Emerging Leaders Program, SCS

References A vailable



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 15+ years

of experience in a non-profit setting.

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills

•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate •

•  Excellent Communication •

•  Community Outreach •

•  Decision Making •

Interviewing

Database Management

Training and Development

Maintain Confidentiality

EXPERIENCE

11/2006- CurrentSouthwestern Community Services [Keene/Claremont, NH]

Director of Energy and Employment Programs (11/2015- Current)

Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

WlOA Employment Counselor (11/2006-11/2015)

Provide career management services to eligible customers with a focus on helping them obtain

employment. Follows stringent guidelines and extensive documentation to help ensure

program Is running with federal and state government regulations. Serves as a liaison between

customers, instructors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources to help provide appropriate referrals throughout the community.

Staples [various locations throughout VT, ME, NY and NH] 9/1996-11/2006

Operations Manager

Consistently promoted over a 10 year period. Established and maintained all store operations.

Provided high end customer service which helped to continuously exceed maximum sales goals.

Fulfilled a broad range of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff

training, administering benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing store personnel.

Managed staff payroll, store scheduling, company marketing and overall store presentation.

EDUCATION

Granite State College- Concord, NH

Bachelor of Science (BS) in Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated June 2012



Sheri Soraceni

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills

•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate

•  Excellent Communication

•  Community Outreach

•  Decision Making

•  Interviewing

•  Database Management
•  Training and Development
• Maintain Confidentiality

8/2021' Current

PROFESSIONAL WORK HISTORY

Southwestern Community Services [Keene/Claremont, NH]
Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs
Help assist current Director with overseeing all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric
Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

10/2014-8/2021
Great Clips Salon {Keene, NH]

Salon Manager

Maintained all salon operations. Provided high end guest experience by providing a customer-
oriented atmosphere through extensive staff customer service training. Fulfilled a broad range
of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff training, administering
benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing salon personnel. Maintained staff
scheduling, supply ordering, salon presentation/marketing and attended community events.

C and S Wholesale Grocers (Keene, NH]

Accounts Receivable Analyst

Development and application of all EFT Customers

10/2006-5/2011

EDUCATION

Keene Beauty Academy Park Ave- Keene, NH
NH Cosmetology Licensure

Graduated February 2013


